PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Minute of meeting of the Planning and Development Management Committee held in the Council Chamber, Ground Floor, Council Building, 2 High Street, Perth on Wednesday 13 March 2019 at 10.00am.

Present: Councillors R McCall, B Brawn, H Anderson, B Band, E Drysdale, T Gray, D Illingworth (substituting for Councillor I James), A Jarvis, L Simpson, R Watters and W Wilson.

In Attendance: A Condliffe, J Scott, G Bissett, M Lee, M Barr, L Reid, K Paton, J Escott, P Dickson (all Housing and Environment); C Elliott, L Potter and D Williams (all Corporate and Democratic Services).

Apologies: Councillors M Barnacle, H Coates and I James.

Councillor B Brawn, Vice Convener, Presiding.

123. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES

The Vice Convener welcomed everyone present to the meeting.

124. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no Declarations of Interest in terms of the Councillors' Code of Conduct.

125. MINUTES

The minute of meeting of the Planning and Development Management Committee of 13 February 2019 (Arts. 71-76) was submitted, approved as a correct record and authorised for signature.

126. DEPUTATIONS

In terms of Standing Order 72, the Committee agreed to hear deputations in relation to the following planning applications:

Planning Application No.	Art. No.
18/02139/FLM	127(1)(i)
18/01614/FLL	127(2)(i)
18/01941/FLL	127(2)(ii)
18/01908/FLL	127(2)(iii)
18/02009/FLL	127(2)(iv)

127. APPLICATIONS FOR DETERMINATION

(1) Major Applications

(i) 18/02139/FLM - SCONE - Erection of 51 retirement flats and cycle store, formation of parking and associated works, land at Wheel Inn, 37 Angus Road, Scone – Report 19/68 – Juniper Residential Ltd

Mr M Myles and Mr K Dillon, on behalf of the applicant, and Mr J Steele, applicant, addressed the Committee, and following their representation, withdrew to the public gallery.

Motion (Councillors L Simpson and W Wilson)

Refuse, for the following reason: The proposal is contrary to policies PM1A, PM1B(c) and RD1 of the Perth and Kinross Local Development Plan 2014, as the proposal does not contribute to or respect the character of the immediate surrounding area due to the scale, massing and height of the main block.

Amendment (Councillors E Drysdale and T Gray)

Grant, subject to the following direction, terms, conditions and informatives:

Conditions

- The development hereby approved must be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents, unless otherwise provided for by conditions imposed by this decision notice.
 Reason – To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents.
- The occupation of the residential accommodation hereby approved shall be restricted to occupants aged 55 and over and shall not be occupied as the sole or main residence of any occupant aged under 55 years of age.
 Reason For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure occupation of the development hereby approved complies with Policy PM3 Infrastructure Contributions, of the Perth and Kinross Local Development Plan 2014.
- 3. Prior to the occupation of any phase of the development, the detail and timing of the on-site affordable apartment delivery shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Council as Planning

Authority. The approved scheme shall thereafter be delivered and managed in accordance with the agreed delivery mechanism and timing.

Reason – To ensure the development is in accordance with the terms of the Perth and Kinross Council Local Development Plan 2014 and to comply with the Council's policy on Developer Contributions and Affordable Housing Supplementary Guidance 2016.

- 4. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of the specification and colour of the proposed external finishing materials to be used shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Council as Planning Authority. The scheme as agreed shall be implemented prior to the completion or bringing into use of the development, whichever is the earlier.
 - Reason In the interests of visual amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- Prior to the commencement of any works on site, all 5. trees on site (other than those marked for felling on the approved plans) and those which have Root Protection Areas which fall within the site shall be retained and protected. Protection methods shall be strictly in accordance with BS 5837 2012: Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction. Protection measures, once in place, shall remain in place for the duration of construction. Any works required within the Root Protection Areas shall be fully justified by an arborist and a detailed construction method statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council as Planning Authority with subsequent works being undertaken to fully comply with the arborist recommendations. Reason – To ensure a satisfactory standard of development and environmental quality and to reserve the rights of the Council as Planning Authority.
- 6. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, further detail (including the detailed specification and planting numbers satisfying required compensatory planting and biodiversity opportunities) of the proposed landscaping and planting scheme shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Council as Planning Authority. The detailed scheme as subsequently approved shall be carried out and completed within the first available planting season (October to March)

after the completion or bringing into use of the development, whichever is the earlier, and the date of Practical Completion of the landscaping scheme shall be supplied in writing to the Council as Planning Authority within 7 days of that date. The scheme as agreed and implemented shall thereafter be maintained to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.

Reason – In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure the satisfactory implementation of the proposed planting scheme.

- 7. The recommendations within the supporting Bat Activity Survey Report (plan: 18/02139/28) hereby approved shall be fully adhered to, respected and undertaken as part of the construction phase of development.
 - Reason In the interests of employing best practice ecology and to ensure there is no adverse impact on any protected species as identified under the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981).
- No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs or works 8. to, or demolition of, buildings or structures that may be used by breeding birds shall take place between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed check of vegetation for active birds' nests immediately before the vegetation is cleared or building affected, and provided written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to the local Planning Authority. Reason – In the interests of employing best practice ecology and to ensure there is no adverse impact on any protected species as identified under the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981).
- 9. Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, details of the location, number and specification of swift brick(s) or swift nest box(s) shall be submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter, the swift brick(s) or swift nest box(s) shall be installed in accordance with the agreed details prior to the occupation of the relevant residential block.

 Reason In the interests of enhancing biodiversity opportunities on the site.
- 10. Prior to the commencement of works on site, further detailed drawings showing locations for bin collection presentation shall be submitted for the

further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority and thereafter implemented as part of the development.

Reason – In order to ensure adequate servicing facilities are provided.

- 11. All plant or equipment shall be so enclosed, attenuated and/or maintained such that any noise therefrom shall not exceed Noise Rating 35 between 0700 and 2300 hours daily, or Noise Rating 25 between 2300 and 0700 hours daily, within any neighbouring residential property, with all windows slightly open, when measured and/ or calculated and plotted on a rating curve chart.

 Reason In the interests of public health and to prevent noise pollution.
- 12. Prior to the commencement of the development, a construction traffic management scheme (CTMS) shall be submitted for the written approval of the Planning Authority. The CTMS shall include the following:
 - (a) Restriction of construction traffic to approved routes and the measures to be put in place to avoid other routes being used;
 - (b) Timing of construction traffic to minimise impact on local communities, particularly at school start and finishing times, on days when refuse collection takes place, on Sundays or during local events;
 - (c) Arrangements for liaison with the Roads Authority regarding winter maintenance;
 - (d) Emergency arrangements detailing communication and contingency arrangements in the event of vehicle breakdown;
 - (e) Arrangements for the cleaning of wheels and chassis of vehicles to prevent material from the construction site associated with the development being deposited on the public road:
 - (f) Arrangements for cleaning of roads affected by material deposited from construction sites associated with the development;
 - (g) Arrangements for signage at site access and crossovers in order to provide safe access for pedestrians and cyclists;
 - (h) Details of information signs to inform other road users of construction traffic:
 - (i) Arrangements to ensure that access for emergency service vehicles are not impeded;

- Monitoring, reporting and implementation (i) arrangements; and
- Arrangements for detailing with non-(k) compliance.

The CTMS as approved shall be adhered to during the entire site construction programme. Reason – In the interests of pedestrian and traffic safety and in the interests of free traffic flow.

- 13. Prior to the development hereby approved being completed or brought into use, the accesses at Angus Road and Stormont Road shall be upgraded to the satisfaction of the Council as Roads Authority and footpath links, including dropped kerbs shall be provided at both accesses in accordance with the standards required by the Council as Roads Authority.
 - Reason In the interest of pedestrian and cycle safetv.
- 14. Prior to the development hereby approved being completed or brought into use, a scheme for the location and specification of a 3 bay cantilever bus shelter and information board shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council as Planning Authority, in consultation with the Council's Public Transport Unit. The approved scheme shall thereafter be installed at the applicants expense, in accordance with the agreed details and confirmed as operational by the Council's Public Transport Unit, prior to the occupation of the last residential unit. Reason – In the interest of promoting sustainable public transport.
- Development shall not commence on site until further 15. details for the proposed sustainable urban drainage system (SUDS) has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Council as Planning Authority, in consultation with SEPA (where necessary). The scheme shall be developed in accordance with the technical guidance contained in The SUDS Manual (C753) and the Council's Flood Risk and Flood Risk Assessments Developer Guidance, and shall incorporate source control and clarify future ownership and maintenance of the proposed system. All works shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and be operational prior to the bringing into use of the development. Reason - For clarity and in order to ensure that surface water arising from the development is

adequately dealt with and that any sustainable urban

drainage system (SUDS) does not increase flood risk elsewhere.

Justification

The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and there are no other material considerations that would justify a departure therefrom.

Informatives

- 1. This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started within that period (see section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)).
- 2. Under section 27A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) the person undertaking the development is required to give the planning authority prior written notification of the date on which it is intended to commence the development. A failure to comply with this statutory requirement would constitute a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of that Act, which may result in enforcement action being taken.
- 3. As soon as practicable after the development is complete, the person who completes the development is obliged by section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to give the Planning Authority written notice of that position.
- 4. This development will require the 'Display of notice while development is carried out', under Section 27C (1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1997, as amended, and Regulation 41 of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013. The form of the notice is set out in Schedule 7 of the Regulations and a draft notice is included for your guidance. According to Regulation 41 the notice must be:
 - Displayed in a prominent place at or in the vicinity of the site of the development;
 - · Readily visible to the public; and
 - Printed on durable material.
- 5. No work shall be commenced until an application for building warrant has been submitted and approved.
- 6. The applicant is reminded that, should any protected species be present a licence may be required from Scottish Natural Heritage to disturb a protected species. Failure to obtain a licence may constitute a

- criminal act under the Habitats Regulations and penalties are severe for non compliance.
- 7. The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended, it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild birds while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act.
- 8. Swift brick installation should proceed in accordance with Swift Conservation guidance available from swift-conservation.org. Installation of lighting and bat boxes should proceed in accordance with Bat Conservation Trust guidance.
- 9. The applicant is advised to refer to Perth & Kinross Council's <u>Supplementary Guidance on Flood Risk and Flood Risk Assessments 2014</u> as it contains advice relevant to your development.
- 10. The applicant should be advised that in terms of Section 56 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 he must obtain from the Council as Roads Authority consent to open an existing road or footway prior to the commencement of works. Advice on the disposal of surface water must be sought at the initial stages of design from Scottish Water and the Scottish Environment Protection Agency.
- 11. The applicant is advised to allow for a maximum of 10 linear metres of level hard standing from bin storage or presentation point to refuse collection vehicle to reduce manual handling for bin collection crews.
- 12. The applicant is recommended to discuss potential options with the Councils waste service team for securing an onsite glass recycling point for the benefit of the development.

In terms of Standing Order 58 a roll call vote was taken.

9 members voted for the Amendment as follows: Councillors Anderson, Band, Brawn, Drysdale, Gray, Illingworth, Jarvis, McCall, and Watters.

2 members voted for the Motion as follows: Councillors Simpson and Wilson.

Resolved:

In accordance with the Amendment.

(2) Local Applications

Prior to the consideration of Arts (Item 5)(2)(i) and (Item 5)(2)(ii), it was agreed due to the nature of both applications to consider deputations and questions from members for both applications together, before considering separate decisions for each application.

Mr S Howie, the applicant, answered questions from the Committee, and, following the conclusion of questions, withdrew to the public benches.

(i) 18/01614/FLL - DUNNING - Erection of an agricultural building, land South East of A M Howie Yard, Yetts Road, Dunning – Report 19/69 – Simon Howie Farms

Resolved:

Grant, subject to the following terms, conditions and informatives:

Conditions

- The proposed development must be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents, unless otherwise provided for by conditions imposed on the planning permission.
 Reason - To ensure that the development is carried out in
 - Reason To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the plans approved.
- Prior to the commencement of development, an Odour Management Plan (OMP) taking account of the one approved under application 15/02097/FLL dated 7 October 2016 shall be submitted and agreed in writing with the Council as Planning Authority. The plan as agreed shall be fully implemented and maintained as part of the planning permission to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 3. Should any aspect of the development result in verified odour complaint determined by the Council as Planning Authority in consultation with Environmental Health, within 14 days of written request by the Council as Planning Authority, the applicant shall arrange for an Odour Impact Assessment (OIA) to be carried out by a qualified consultant. The OIA findings shall be submitted for the written approval of the Council as Planning Authority, in consultation with Environmental Health and must draw conclusions and make recommendations as necessary. Thereafter any necessary measures to ameliorate the odour nuisance shall be put in place, and a new or revised Odour Management Plan must be

submitted to the Council within a specified agreed timescale.

Reason - In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.

- 4. Noise levels arising from the development shall not exceed a Rating Level of LAeq time rating 52 dB, when measured over any given 1 hour period, at the façade of any residential property. All measurements shall be determined using the guidance of BS4142:2014 RATING FOR INDUSTRIAL NOISE AFFECTING MIXED RESIDENTIAL & INDUSTRIAL AREAS, and measurements shall be corrected appropriately for acoustic features as described by this standard. Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 5. Should any aspect of the operation of this facility lead to a breach of the condition 4, within 14 days of written request by the Council as Planning Authority the applicant shall arrange for an investigation by a suitably qualified noise consultant with the scope and timescale submitted to and agreed in writing with the Council as Planning Authority in consultation with Environmental Health. Thereafter the agreed measures shall be implemented to ameliorate the nuisance.

 Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 6. Prior to the commencement of development details of the specification and colour of the proposed external finishing materials to be used shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Council as Planning Authority. The scheme as agreed shall be implemented prior to the completion or bringing into use of the development, whichever is the earlier.
 - Reason In the interests of visual amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 7. The hours of operations shall be restricted to 0700 hours to 1900 hours daily.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 8. Servicing of and deliveries to the premises shall be carried out between 0700 and 1900 Monday to Saturday only, with no servicing or deliveries permitted on Sundays.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 9. Audible vehicle reversing alarms shall be operated on the method that they only emit the warning if necessary, e.g. on an infrared signal which detects persons to the rear of the vehicle.

Reason - In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.

- 10. Prior to the installation of any external lighting the details shall be submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of light spill, brightness of the lighting and the proposed hours of operation. The agreed lighting scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full accordance with the agreed scheme.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 11. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed landscaping and planting scheme for the site shall be submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. The scheme shall include an area of planting to the northeast to provide a buffer between the site and the residential properties to the north. The scheme shall include details of the height and slopes of any mounding or recontouring of the site, full details of all hard landscaping proposals including materials and installation methods and, species, height, size and density of trees and shrubs to be planted. The scheme as subsequently approved shall be carried out and completed within the first available planting season (October to March) after the completion or bringing into use of the development, whichever is the earlier, and the date of Practical Completion of the landscaping scheme shall be supplied in writing to the Council as Planning Authority within 7 days of that date. The scheme as agreed and implemented shall thereafter be maintained. Reason - In the interests of visual amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 12. During construction the public road shall be kept free from mud and debris at all times and suitable wheel cleaning facilities shall be provided within the site to prevent the deposition of mud and debris on to the public road.
 - Reason To ensure the appropriate management of construction surface water run-off to minimise flooding and avoid discharge of sediment/pollution to the local water environment or neighbouring property, in the interests of residential and environmental amenity.
- 13. Development shall not commence on site until a detailed sustainable urban drainage system (SUDS) has been submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority, in consultation with SEPA where necessary. The scheme shall be developed in accordance with the technical guidance contained in The SUDS Manual (C753) and the Council's Flood Risk and

Flood Risk Assessments Developer Guidance, and shall incorporate source control. All works shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and be operational prior to the bringing into use of the development.

Reason - To ensure the provision of effective drainage for the site.

Justification

The proposal is in accordance with the Development Plan and there are no material reasons which justify departing from the Development Plan.

Informatives

- This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started within that period (see section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)).
- 2. Under section 27A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) the person undertaking the development is required to give the Planning Authority prior written notification of the date on which it is intended to commence the development. A failure to comply with this statutory requirement would constitute a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of that Act, which may result in enforcement action being taken.
- As soon as practicable after the development is complete, the person who completes the development is obliged by section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to give the Planning Authority written notice of that position.
- 4. An application for Building Warrant may be required.
- (ii) 18/01941/FLL DUNNING Erection of 2 agricultural building, land South East of A M Howie Yard, Yetts Road, Dunning Report 19/70 Simon Howie Farms

Resolved:

Grant, subject to the following terms, conditions and informatives:

Conditions

 The proposed development must be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents, unless otherwise provided for by conditions imposed on the planning permission.

- Reason To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the plans approved.
- 2. Prior to the commencement of development, an Odour Management Plan (OMP) taking account of the one approved under application 15/02097/FLL dated 7 October 2016 shall be submitted and agreed in writing with the Council as Planning Authority. The plan as agreed shall be fully implemented and maintained as part of the planning permission to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- Should any aspect of the development result in verified 3. odour complaint determined by the Council as Planning Authority in consultation with Environmental Health, within 14 days of written request by the Council as Planning Authority, the applicant shall arrange for an Odour Impact Assessment (OIA) to be carried out by a qualified consultant. The OIA findings shall be submitted for the written approval of the Council as Planning Authority, in consultation with Environmental Health and must draw conclusions and make recommendations as necessary. Thereafter any necessary measures to ameliorate the odour nuisance shall be put in place, and a new or revised Odour Management Plan must be submitted to the council within a specified agreed timescale.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 4. Noise levels arising from the development shall not exceed a Rating Level of LAeq time rating 52 dB, when measured over any given 1 hour period, at the façade of any residential property. All measurements shall be determined using the guidance of BS4142:2014 RATING FOR INDUSTRIAL NOISE AFFECTING MIXED RESIDENTIAL & INDUSTRIAL AREAS, and measurements shall be corrected appropriately for acoustic features as described by this standard. Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 5. Should any aspect of the operation of this facility lead to a breach of the condition 4, within 14 days of written request by the Council as Planning Authority the applicant shall arrange for an investigation by a suitably qualified noise consultant with the scope and timescale submitted to and agreed in writing with the Council as Planning Authority in consultation with Environmental Health. Thereafter the agreed measures shall be implemented to ameliorate the nuisance.

- Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 6. Prior to the commencement of development details of the specification and colour of the proposed external finishing materials to be used shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Council as Planning Authority. The scheme as agreed shall be implemented prior to the completion or bringing into use of the development, whichever is the earlier.
 - Reason In the interests of visual amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 7. The hours of operations shall be restricted to 0700 hours to 1900 hours daily.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 8. Servicing of and deliveries to the premises shall be carried out between 0700 and 1900 Monday to Saturday only, with no servicing or deliveries permitted on Sundays.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- Audible vehicle reversing alarms shall be operated on the method that they only emit the warning if necessary, e.g. on an infrared signal which detects persons to the rear of the vehicle.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 10. Prior to the installation of any external lighting the details shall be submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of light spill, brightness of the lighting and the proposed hours of operation. The agreed lighting scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full accordance with the agreed scheme.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 11. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed landscaping and planting scheme for the site shall be submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. The scheme shall include an area of planting to the northeast to provide a buffer between the site and the residential properties to the north. The scheme shall include details of the height and slopes of any mounding or recontouring of the site, full details of all hard landscaping proposals including materials and installation methods and, species, height, size and density of trees and shrubs to be planted. The scheme as subsequently approved shall be carried out and completed within the first available planting season

(October to March) after the completion or bringing into use of the development, whichever is the earlier, and the date of Practical Completion of the landscaping scheme shall be supplied in writing to the Council as Planning Authority within 7 days of that date. The scheme as agreed and implemented shall thereafter be maintained. Reason - In the interests of visual amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.

- 12. During construction the public road shall be kept free from mud and debris at all times and suitable wheel cleaning facilities shall be provided within the site to prevent the deposition of mud and debris on to the public road.
 - Reason To ensure the appropriate management of construction surface water run-off to minimise flooding and avoid discharge of sediment/pollution to the local water environment or neighbouring property, in the interests of residential and environmental amenity.
- 13. Development shall not commence on site until a detailed sustainable urban drainage system (SUDS) has been submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority, in consultation with SEPA where necessary. The scheme shall be developed in accordance with the technical guidance contained in The SUDS Manual (C753) and the Council's Flood Risk and Flood Risk Assessments Developer Guidance, and shall incorporate source control. All works shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and be operational prior to the bringing into use of the development.

Reason - To ensure the provision of effective drainage for the site.

Justification

The proposal is in accordance with the Development Plan and there are no material reasons which justify departing from the Development Plan.

Informatives

- 1. This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started within that period (see section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)).
- 2. Under section 27A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) the person undertaking the development is required to give the planning authority prior written notification of the date on which it is intended to commence the development. A

failure to comply with this statutory requirement would constitute a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of that Act, which may result in enforcement action being taken.

- As soon as practicable after the development is complete, the person who completes the development is obliged by section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to give the Planning Authority written notice of that position.
- 4. An application for Building Warrant may be required.
- (iii) 18/01908/FLL ARDLER Erection of a free range egg production unit and associated works, land 800 metres South West of East Ardler Farm, Main Street, Ardler Report 19/71 Mr P Grewar

Mr A Mulholand and Mr B Ellis, objectors to the application, followed by Mr M Sharp, on behalf of the applicant, and Mr J Grewar, applicant, addressed the Committee, and following their respective representations, withdrew to the public gallery.

Resolved:

Grant, subject to the following terms, conditions and informatives:

Conditions

- The development hereby approved must be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents, unless otherwise provided for by conditions imposed by this decision notice.
 - Reason To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents.
- 2. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the applicant shall submit for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority, in consultation with the Roads Authority (Structures), a Construction Traffic Management Scheme (TMS) which shall include the following:
 - restriction of construction traffic to approved routes and the measures to be put in place to avoid other routes being used;
 - (b) timing of construction traffic to minimise impact on local communities particularly at school start and finishing times, on days when refuse collection is undertaken, on Sundays and during local events;
 - a code of conduct for HGV drivers to allow for queuing traffic to pass;
 - (d) arrangements for liaison with the Roads Authority regarding winter maintenance;

- (e) emergency arrangements detailing communication and contingency arrangements in the event of vehicle breakdown;
- (f) arrangements for the cleaning of wheels and chassis of vehicles to prevent material from construction sites associated with the development being deposited on the road;
- (g) arrangements for cleaning of roads affected by material deposited from construction sites associated with the development;
- (h) arrangements for signage at site accesses and crossovers and on roads to be used by construction traffic in order to provide safe access for pedestrians, cyclists and equestrians;
- (i) details of information signs to inform other road users of construction traffic;
- (j) arrangements to ensure that access for emergency service vehicles are not impeded;
- (k) co-ordination with other significant developments known to use roads affected by construction traffic;
- (I) traffic arrangements in the immediate vicinity of temporary construction compounds;
- (m) the provision and installation of traffic counters at the applicant's expense at locations to be agreed prior to the commencement of construction;
- (n) monitoring, reporting and implementation arrangements;
- (o) arrangements for dealing with non-compliance;and
- (p) details of HGV movements to and from the site. The TMS as approved shall be strictly adhered to during the entire site construction programme.
- Reason In the interests of pedestrian and traffic safety and in the interests of free traffic flow.
- 3. All plant or equipment shall be so enclosed, attenuated and/or maintained such that any noise therefrom shall not exceed Noise Rating 35 between 0700 and 2300 hours daily, or Noise Rating 20 between 2300 and 0700 hours daily, within any neighbouring residential property, with all windows slightly open, when measured and/ or calculated and plotted on a rating curve chart.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 4. Should any aspect of the operation of this facility lead to a breach of condition 3, within 14 days of a written request by the Council as Planning Authority the applicant shall arrange for an investigation by a suitably qualified noise consultant with the scope and timescale submitted to and agreed in writing with the Council as Planning Authority in

consultation with Environmental Health. Thereafter the agreed measures shall be implemented to ameliorate the nuisance.

Reason - In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.

5. The operation of the building shall be conducted strictly in accordance with the approved Noise and Odour Management Plan (NOMP) hereby approved (doc ref:18/01908/14). The Noise and Odour Management Plan is approved as a fluid document and any variations to the mitigation measures which are required as a result of any review shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council as Planning Authority and thereafter adhered to.

Reason - In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.

- Should any aspect of the development result in verified 6. odour complaint determined by the Council as Planning Authority in consultation with Environmental Health. within 14 days of written request by the Council as Planning Authority, the applicant shall arrange for an Odour Impact Assessment (OIA) to be carried out by a qualified consultant. The OIA findings shall be submitted for the written approval of the Council as Planning Authority, in consultation with Environmental Health and must draw conclusions and make recommendations as necessary. Thereafter any necessary measures to ameliorate the odour nuisance should be put in place, and a new or revised Odour Management Plan must be submitted to the Council as Planning Authority within a specified agreed timescale.
 - Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 7. Prior to the installation of any external lighting, the details of all external lighting shall be submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of light spill, brightness of the lighting and the proposed hours of operation. The agreed lighting scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full accordance with the agreed scheme. Reason In the interests of visual and residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality; to reserve the rights of the Planning Authority.
- 8. All external lighting shall be sufficiently screened and aligned so as to ensure that there is no direct illumination of neighbouring land and that light spillage beyond the boundaries of the site is minimised to a degree that it

does not adversely affect the amenity of the neighbouring land.

Reason - In the interests of visual and residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality; to reserve the rights of the Planning Authority.

- 9. Prior to the commencement of any works on site the woodland to the south east of the site shall be retained protected. Protection methods shall be strictly in accordance with BS 5837 2012: Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction. Protection measures, once in place, shall remain in place for the duration of construction.
 - Reason In the interests of visual amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 10. Prior to the commencement of development, details of additional tree planting along the north west and north east boundaries of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The agreed detail shall thereafter be implemented prior to the completion of the development and completed in accordance with the timescales outlined in condition 11. Reason In the interests of visual amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 11. The planting scheme as approved under condition 10 shall be implemented fully within one calendar year of the commencement of development and thereafter maintained.
 - Reason In the interests of visual amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 12. Any planting failing to become established within five years shall be replaced in the following planting season with others of similar size, species and number. Reason - In the interests of visual amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 13. Storm water drainage from all paved surfaces, including the access, shall be disposed of by means of suitable Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems to meet the requirements of best management practices. Reason - To ensure the provision of effective drainage for the site.
- 14. The conclusions and recommended action points within the supporting biodiversity survey (doc ref: 18/01908/12) submitted and hereby approved shall be fully adhered to, respected and undertaken as part of the construction phase of development.

Reason - In the interests of protecting environmental quality and of biodiversity.

- 15. No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs or works to or demolition of buildings or structures that may be used by breeding birds shall take place between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed check of vegetation for active birds' nests immediately before the vegetation is cleared and provided written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to the local Planning Authority.
 - Reason In the interests of protecting environmental quality and of biodiversity.
- Measures to protect animals from being trapped in open excavations and/or pipe and culverts shall be implemented for the duration of the construction works of the development hereby approved. The measures may include creation of sloping escape ramps for animals, which may be achieved by edge profiling of trenches/excavations or by using planks placed into them at the end of each working day and open pipework greater than 150 mm outside diameter being blanked off at the end of each working day.
 - Reason In the interests of protecting environmental quality and of biodiversity.
- 17. All operational traffic movements to and from the site shall be undertaken in accordance with the routing outlined on approved drawing 18/01908/15 to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.

 Reason In the interests of pedestrian and traffic safety and in the interests of free traffic flow.
- 18. No lighting of the outdoor range area is permitted. Any lighting in this area will require further planning permission.
 - Reason In the interests of visual amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.

Justification

The proposal is in accordance with the Development Plan and there are no material reasons which justify departing from the Development Plan.

Informatives

1. This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started within that period (see section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)).

- 2. Under section 27A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) the person undertaking the development is required to give the planning authority prior written notification of the date on which it is intended to commence the development. A failure to comply with this statutory requirement would constitute a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of that Act, which may result in enforcement action being taken.
- 3. As soon as practicable after the development is complete, the person who completes the development is obliged by section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to give the Planning Authority written notice of that position.
- 4. No work shall be commenced until an application for building warrant has been submitted and approved.
- 5. The applicant is reminded that, should any protected species be present a licence may be required from Scottish Natural Heritage to disturb a protected species. Failure to obtain a licence may constitute a criminal act under the Habitats Regulations and penalties are severe for non-compliance.
- 6. The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended, it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild birds while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act.
- 7. The applicant should be aware of the SEPA's General Binding Rules of The Water Environment (Controlled Activities) (Scotland) Regulations 2011 (as amended) and the Intake and Outfall Good Practice Guide https://www.sepa.org.uk/media/150984/wat_sg_28.pdf with regards the proposed treatment and discharge of treated surface water to the burn. Further information is available to the applicant in the CAR Practical Guide
- 8. This development will require the 'Display of notice while development is carried out', under Section 27C(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1997, as amended, and Regulation 41 of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013. The form of the notice is set out in Schedule 7 of the Regulations and a draft notice is included for your guidance. In accordance with Regulation 41 the notice must be:

 Displayed in a prominent place at or in the vicinity of the site of the development, readily visible to the public, printed on durable material.
- 9. The applicant is advised that the granting of planning consent does not guarantee a connection to Scottish

Water's assets. The applicant must make a separate application to Scottish Water Planning & Development Services team for permission to connect to the public wastewater system and/or water network and all their requirements must be fully adhered to.

In terms of Standing Order 60, Councillor Drysdale requested that his dissent to the decision taken be recorded.

THE COMMITTEE ADJOURNED FOR 5 MINUTES AT THIS POINT BEFORE RECONVENING.

(iv) 18/02009/FLL - CRIEFF - Erection of 4 dwellinghouses, 10 flats, bin and cycle storage, fencing and gates, formation of steps, parking area, landscaping and associated works, land at disused bowling green and 42 Mitchell Street, Crieff – Report 19/72 – Struan Homes

J Scott, Team Leader, delivered an update on proposed conditions, which were circulated to members prior to the meeting.

Mrs V Kirk, objector to the application, followed by Mr C Stewart, on behalf of the applicant, addressed the Committee, and following their respective representations, withdrew to the public gallery.

Motion (Councillors R McCall and R Watters)

Grant, subject to the following terms, conditions and informatives, including the updates provided by Development Management:

Conditions

- The development hereby approved must be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents, unless otherwise provided for by conditions imposed by this decision.
 Reason - To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents.
- 2. Prior to the commencement of the development, a dust management plan for the construction stage of the development, detailing prevention, control and mitigation measures for dust and noise control, shall be submitted for further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority in consultation with PKC Environmental Health. Thereafter the agreed

scheme will be undertaken in full to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.

Reason - In order to safeguard the residential amenity of the area.

- 3. Prior to the commencement of development, full details of all road levels must be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Council as Planning Authority in consultation with PKC Structures and Flooding. Thereafter, the scheme as agreed must be implemented for the life of the development. Reason In the interest of flood risk.
- 4. Prior to the commencement of development, an evaluation for the potential of the site to be affected by contamination by a previous use will be undertaken and, as a minimum, a Preliminary Risk Assessment (Phase 1 Desk Study) shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Council as Planning Authority. If the preliminary risk assessment identifies the need for further assessment, an intrusive investigation shall be undertaken to identify;
 - I. the nature, extent and type(s) of contamination on the site
 - II. measures to treat/remove contamination to ensure the site is fit for the use proposed
 - III. measures to deal with contamination during construction works
 - IV. condition of the site on completion of decontamination measures.

Prior to the completion or bringing into use of any part of the development the measures to decontaminate the site shall be fully implemented in accordance with the scheme subsequently agreed by the Council as Planning Authority. Verification that the scheme has been fully implemented must also be submitted to the Council as Planning Authority. Reason - In order to deal with any potential contamination of the site as a result of its former use.

5. Prior to the development hereby approved being completed or brought into use, the vehicular access shall be formed in accordance with Perth & Kinross Council's Road Development Guide Type A junction Figure 5.5 access detail. A kerbed footway build-out (3m radius) should be constructed either side of the junction to aid vehicle and pedestrian visibility. Reason - In the interests of road safety; to ensure an acceptable standard of construction within the public road boundary.

- 6. Prior to the installation of any external lighting, the details of all external lighting shall be submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of light spill, brightness of the lighting and the proposed hours of operation. The agreed lighting scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full accordance with the agreed scheme. Lighting cables in the footway should be lowered with twin wall ducting following any access improvements. Reason In the interests of road safety; to prevent a possible danger to road users by avoiding excessive glare or brightness.
- 7. The recommendations contained within Section 6 of the Air Quality Management Plan hereby approved (18/02009/34), prepared by Resource and Environmental Consultants Limited (January 2019), shall be fully adhered to, all to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.

 Reason In the interests of air quality.
- 8. Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed site plan containing proposed site levels for the entire development site shall be submitted for further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter the agreed scheme will be undertaken in full to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.

 Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental
- 9. Prior to the commencement of development details of the proposed external storage identified within plots 2 and 3 shall be submitted for further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter the agreed details will be undertaken in full to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority.

quality.

- Reason In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure a satisfactory standard of local environmental quality.
- 10. Prior to the commencement of any works on site, all trees on site (other than those marked for felling on the approved plans) and those which have Root Protection Areas which fall within the site shall be retained and protected. Protection methods shall be strictly in accordance with BS 5837 2012: Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction. Protection measures, once in place, shall remain in place for the duration of construction.

Reason - To ensure a satisfactory standard of development and environmental quality and to reserve the rights of the Planning Authority.

11. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a detailed landscaping and planting scheme for the site shall be submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of the height and slopes of any mounding or recontouring of the site, full details of all hard landscaping proposals including materials and installation methods and, species, height, size and density of trees and shrubs to be planted and the ongoing maintenance of these elements. The scheme as subsequently approved shall be carried out and completed within the first available planting season (October to March) after the completion or bringing into use of the development, whichever is the earlier, and the date of Practical Completion of the landscaping scheme shall be supplied in writing to the Council as Planning Authority within 7 days of that date. The scheme as agreed and implemented shall thereafter be maintained to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority. Reason - In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure the satisfactory implementation of the proposed planting scheme.

Justification

The proposal is in accordance with the Development Plan and there are no material reasons which justify departing from the Development Plan.

Procedural Notes

The planning permission decision notice shall not be issued until such time as the required Developer Contributions have been secured or paid in full.

In the event the applicant does not either make the required payment within 28 days from the date the agent/applicant is advised of the need for the contributions, or complete a legal agreement for delayed payment within a 4 month period from the date the agent/applicant is advised of the need for the contributions the application may be refused under delegated powers without any further discussion with the applicant.

Informatives

- 1. This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started within that period (see section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)).
- 2. Under section 27A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) the person undertaking the development is required to give the planning authority prior written notification of the date on which it is intended to commence the development. A failure to comply with this statutory requirement would constitute a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of that Act, which may result in enforcement action being taken.
- 3. As soon as practicable after the development is complete, the person who completes the development is obliged by section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to give the planning authority written notice of that position.
- 4. No work shall be commenced until an application for building warrant has been submitted and approved.
- 5. The applicant is advised that in terms of Sections 56 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 he must obtain from the Council as Roads Authority consent to open an existing road or footway prior to the commencement of works. Advice on the disposal of surface water must be sought at the initial stages of design from Scottish Water and the Scottish Environment Protection Agency.
- 6. The applicant should be aware of the requirements of the Council's Environment and Regulatory Services in relation to waste collection from the site and should ensure adequate measures are provided on site to allow for the collection of waste.
- 7. The presence of protected species, and the extent to which they could be affected by the proposed development, should be established before works commence. Should protected species be identified within the site the developer should ensure that all appropriate measures required to comply with the relevant legislation are carried out.
- 8. Trees and scrub are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August inclusive. Trees and scrub are present on the application site and are to be assumed to contain nesting birds between the above dates. The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended

(section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning permission for a development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this Act.

- 9. Application for a new postal address should be made via the Street Naming and Numbering page on the Perth & Kinross Council website at www.pkc.gov.uk/snn.
- 10. The applicant is advised to refer to Perth & Kinross Council's Supplementary Guidance on Flood Risk and Flood Risk Assessments 2014 as it contains advice relevant to your development.

 http://www.pkc.gov.uk/article/15061/Supplementary-guidance-Flood-risk-and-flood-risk-assessments

Amendment (Councillor W Wilson and L Simpson)

Refuse, for the following reasons:

- (i) The proposal is contrary to Policy PM1A of the Perth and Kinross Local Development Plan 2014 as the development as proposed creates visual clutter by virtue of too many houses for the site.
- (ii) The proposal is contrary to Policy PM1B(a) of the Perth and Kinross Local Development Plan 2014 as the proposal does not create a sense of identity due to the design, layout and number of units and visual clutter.
- (iii) The proposal is contrary to Policy RD1 of the Perth and Kinross Local Development Plan 2014 as the proposal does not respect the residential amenity of adjacent dwellings due to the number of units proposed.
- (iv) The proposal is contrary to Policy HE3A of the Perth and Kinross Local Development Plan 2014 as the proposal does not preserve or enhance the Crieff Conservation Area based on the number of units proposed for the site.

In terms of Standing Order 58 a roll call vote was taken.

2 members voted for the Amendment as follows: Councillors Simpson and Wilson.

9 members voted for the Motion as follows: Councillors Anderson, Band, Brawn, Drysdale, Gray, Illingworth, Jarvis, McCall, and Watters.

Resolved:

In accordance with the Motion.

(v) 18/02168/FLL - MEIKLEOUR - Change of use from agricultural land to form extension to car park, Meikleour Arms Hotel and Restaurant, Meikleour, Perth – Report 19/73 – Mr S Mercer-Nairne

Resolved:

Grant, subject to the following terms, conditions and informatives:

Conditions

- The development hereby approved must be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents, unless otherwise provided for by conditions imposed by this decision notice.
 - Reason To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the approved drawings and documents.
- Development shall not commence until the developer has 2. secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of archaeological investigation which has been submitted by the applicant, and agreed in writing by the Council as Planning Authority, in consultation with Perth and Kinross Heritage Trust, Thereafter, the developer shall ensure that the programme of archaeological works is fully implemented including that all excavation, preservation, recording, recovery, analysis, publication and archiving of archaeological resources within the development site is undertaken. In addition, the developer shall afford access at all reasonable times to Perth and Kinross Heritage Trust or a nominated representative and shall allow them to observe work in progress. Reason - To ensure a programme of archaeological
 - works is carried out to safeguard and record any archaeological remains within the development area.
- 3. Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved a strategy to restrict car parking directly in front of the Meikleour Arms Hotel and Restaurant (to the south east) shall be submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. Thereafter the strategy as subsequently approved shall be implemented and maintained before the car park extension is brought into use.
 - Reason In the interests of pedestrian and traffic safety and in the interests of free traffic flow.
- 4. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a detailed landscaping and planting scheme for the site shall be submitted for the further written agreement of the Council as Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of the height and slopes of

any mounding or recontouring of the site, full details of all hard landscaping proposals including materials and installation methods and, species, height, size and density of trees and shrubs to be planted. The scheme as subsequently approved shall be carried out and completed within the first available planting season (October to March) after the completion or bringing into use of the development, whichever is the earlier, and the date of Practical Completion of the landscaping scheme shall be supplied in writing to the Council as Planning Authority within 7 days of that date. The scheme as agreed and implemented shall thereafter be maintained to the satisfaction of the Council as Planning Authority. Any planting failing to become established within five years shall be replaced in the following planting season with others of similar size, species and number. Reason - In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure the satisfactory implementation of the proposed planting scheme.

Justification

The proposal is in accordance with the Development Plan and there are no material reasons which justify departing from the Development Plan.

Informatives

- 1. This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started within that period (see section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)).
- 2. Under section 27A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) the person undertaking the development is required to give the planning authority prior written notification of the date on which it is intended to commence the development. A failure to comply with this statutory requirement would constitute a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of that Act, which may result in enforcement action being taken.
- 3. As soon as practicable after the development is complete, the person who completes the development is obliged by section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to give the Planning Authority written notice of that position.
- 4. Trees and scrub are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August inclusive. Trees and scrub are present on the application site and are to be assumed to contain nesting birds between the above

dates. The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended (section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning permission for a development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this Act.

5. The applicant is advised that to enable the negative suspensive condition to be fulfilled (the car park strategy directly in front of the Meikleour Arms Hotel and Restaurant to the south east) may, depending on the strategy to be deployed, constitute operational development and these works themselves may require the submission of a planning application.

(3) Proposal of Application Notice (PAN)

(i) 18/00016/PAN - COUPAR ANGUS - Formation of an energy storage compound including 15 battery storage units, inverters and transformers, a substation, ancillary equipment, store, vehicular access, track and associated works, South East of Coupar Angus Substation, Pleasance Road, Coupar Angus – Report 19/74 – Coronation Power Limited

Councillors Anderson and Wilson both requested more in-depth information be available to the public at the forthcoming second public consultation.

Members also noted the issues identified by the Interim Development Quality Manager.

~~~~~